
County Commissioners Hearing Room 

400 High Street 
Chestertown, Maryland 

AGENDA 

Monday, August 21, 2023 
5:00 p.m. 

Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings in person or listen to the meeting via the audio-only phone 
number and conference identification number listed below.  

1. Dial 1-872-239-8359
2. Enter Conference ID: 469 559 966#

Members of the public are asked to mute their phones/devices, until the Commission Chair opens the floor for 
comment.  

MINUTES 

July 17, 2023 

APPLICATIONS FOR REVIEW: 

22-42 25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC – Extension Request of Special Exception – Utility-Scale Solar in the AZD
26001 Still Pond Neck Road – Third Election District – Agricultural Zoning District (AZD) 

GENERAL DISCUSSION 

ADJOURN  

APPLICANT OR REPRESENTATIVE MUST BE PRESENT 

APPLICANTS ARRIVING MORE THAN 10 MINUTES AFTER THE SCHEDULED HEARING WILL NOT BE HEARD 
AND WILL BE RESCHEDULED AT THE APPLICANT’S EXPENSE. 

Meetings are conducted in Open Session unless otherwise indicated.  All or part of the Board of Appeals meetings can be held 
in closed session under the authority of the MD Open Meetings Law by vote of the members.  Breaks are at the call of the 
Chairman.  Meetings are subject to audio and video recordings. 

All applications will be given the time necessary to assure full public participation and a fair and complete review of all 
projects.  Agenda items are subject to change due to cancellations.   
Other business without assigned times may be discussed during the meeting.   



 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 
Meeting: Kent County Board of Zoning Appeals 
Date:  July 17, 2023 
Time:  5:35 P.M. 
Location: County Commissioners Hearing Room, 400 High Street, Chestertown, Maryland 
 

Agenda Item Sitting for the Board Action Taken Vote 

23-39 Kent Manor Grain, LLC –
Variance – Front, Rear, and Side 
Yard Setbacks 
 
The applicant is requesting 
variances of 353 feet from the 
front yard setback, 200 feet from 
the side yard setback, and 310 
feet from the rear yard setback in 
order to construct a 152-foot by 
75-foot waste management 
structure. The property is located 
at Map 14, Parcel 75 near 
Kennedyville.  
 
The proposed waste management 
structure will be located on a 20-
acre parcel in the center of the 
larger farm. The structure is 
considered an agricultural 
best management practice.  
 
The Kent County Planning 
Commission forwarded a 
favorable recommendation to the 
Board of Appeals in regard to this 
application. 
 
Applicant/Representative 
Charles Miller with Kent Manor 
Grain, LLC, the property owner, 
was sworn in and presented a 
summary of the case.  
 
Public Comment 
No correspondence was received 
on this application.  
 
Planning Staff 
Carla Gerber, AICP, Deputy 
Director, was sworn in. 

John Massey, Acting Chairman 
 
Joan Horsey, Member  
 
David Hill, Member 
 
Mr. Christopher Drummond, 
Attorney for the Board  
 
Campbell Safian, Clerk 
 
 

 

Mr. Hill made a motion to approve 
the setback variances north, south, 
and east to the structure within the 
20-acre property. The shape of the 
parcel is considered a hardship and 
the criteria has been met for granting 
a variance.  
 
The motion was seconded by Ms. 
Horsey; the motion passed with all in 
favor.  

Unanimous 
Approval  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT 



Kent County Board of Zoning Appeals                April 17, 2023   Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
             /s/ Campbell Safian_________  
John Massey, Acting Chairman      Campbell Safian, Planning Specialist 

Agenda Item Sitting for the Board Action Taken Vote 

MINUTES: April 17, 2023  

 
Mr. Massey moved to approve the 
minutes. Ms. Horsey seconded the 
motion; the motion passed with all in 
favor. 

Approved 

Adjourn 

 

 
 
 

 

Mr. Massey made a motion to 
adjourn the meeting, and Ms. Horsey 
seconded the motion; the motion 
passed with all in favor. The meeting 
adjourned at 5:19 p.m. 

Unanimous 
Approval 

DRAFT 



25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC: Extension Request of Special Exception – Utility-Scale Solar in AZD – 1  
 

Department of Planning, Housing, and Zoning 

 
 
TO:   Kent County Board of Appeals 
FROM:   Mark Carper, Associate Planner 
MEETING:  August 21, 2023 
SUBJECT:  25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC 
 Extension Request of Special Exception – Utility-Scale Solar in the AZD 
 

Staff Summary 
 
REQUEST BY APPLICANT 
The applicant, 25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC, is requesting extension of a special exception to construct and 
operate a utility-scale solar energy system in the Agricultural Zoning District (AZD) on an 85-acre farm 
owned by Raymond and Joyce Stoltzfus. The property is located at 26001 Still Pond Neck Road, in the 
Third Election District.  
 
PUBLIC PROCESS 
Per Article VII, Section 4 of the Kent County Land Use Ordinance, approval of a special exception shall be 
valid for one year after the date of approval and thereafter shall become null and void unless construction 
or use is substantially underway during said one year period, or unless the Board of Appeals, or where 
applicable the Planning Director, approves an extension before the expiration of said one year period. 
When provided with sufficient evidence, the Board, or where applicable the Planning Director, may grant 
a special exception for a longer period. 
 
 

SUMMARY OF THE STAFF REPORT 
A special exception was granted by the Board of Appeals on September 18, 2022 (Case No: 22-42), and 
the Planning Commission granted final site plan approval on January 5, 2023 (Case No: 22-08). A necessary 
change in the system size and securing the required third-party decommissioning plan and bond have 
delayed the construction start; thus, the applicant is requesting an extension of the special exception.  
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends approval of an extension of the special exception to 25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC, to 
construct and operate a utility-scale solar energy system in the Agricultural Zoning District (AZD) with the 
following condition: 
 The extended special exception will lapse after the expiration of one year if no substantial 

construction in accordance with the plans herein presented occurs.  
  







   

 

 

August 2nd, 2023 

 

Josh Spencer  

1601 Wewatta St 

Suite 700 

Denver, CO 80202 

850-450-9895 

jspencer@pivotenergy.net  

Pivot Energy 

Kent County Board of Zoning Appeals 

Dr. Albert Townshend 

Joan Horsey 

John Massey 

David Hill 

Christopher F. Drummond 

 

Special Exception Approval Extension Request (Case No: 22-42, 25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC) 

Dear Kent County Board of Zoning Appeals, 

 

 I’m writing this letter to formally request a 1-year extension of our Special Exception Approval of 

a Proposed Utility Scale Solar Energy System for Case No: 22-42 (25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC), 

approved on September 19th, 2022  

 We have made significant progress towards obtaining a building permit, including receiving 

Conditional Major Site Plan Approval.  However, certain unexpected challenges have kept us from being 

construction ready within the 1-year timeframe of approval. These challenges include the following: 

1. System size change – A cost estimate for Interconnection (IX), the fee we would need to pay DPL 

to construct system upgrades that would allow our solar array to connect to their system, was 

provided by Delmarva Power and Light (DPL) on November 17th, 2022 for $1,777,777, consisting 

of substation improvements of $1,267,000, distribution improvements of $70,000 and telecom 

improvements of $440,000. Normally, for a project of this size, we would expect a significantly 

lower number, closer to $50,000 - $350,000.   

mailto:jspencer@pivotenergy.net


   

 

a. The pre-application inquiry from DPL, received on June 24, 2021 did not mention any 

necessary substation improvements and the large additional cost was totally unexpected 

and made the 1MW system unprofitable.  

b. We began coordination with DPL to determine a system size that would not trigger the 

large improvement requirement and on 11/22/2022 and received final word that a 525 kW 

system would not trigger the large improvements on 03/13/2023.  

c. The coordination for the reduced system size halted our Interconnection approval with 

DPL, which needs to be complete before we can begin construction on the site. DPL also 

has to wait for the Maryland Public Service Commission (PSC) to change the system size 

in their internal system to intake our new IX application and start coordination once again. 

A revised Attachment B was submitted to the Maryland PSC on 05/05/2023 and the 

system size has still not been updated as of 08/02/2023, thus halting our Utility 

Interconnection progress. 

d. The reduction in system size will not materially alter the project in terms of the Special 

Exception criteria and the findings made by the Board of Zoning Appeals. The changes 

will reduce the overall size of the system and the number of panels.  Specifically, the 

Limitation of Disturbance (“LOD”) for the project will remain the same as previously 

approved and the number of panels reduced from an estimated 2,376 to 1,300. The only 

change to the approved plan is spacing the solar panels out, with less being required for the 

reduced system size. The reduced size system will comply with all applicable criteria for 

establishing and operating a solar array, including all setback requirements.   

2. Decommissioning/landscape bond – Kent County requires a quote from a contractor for the 

decommissioning/landscape bond.  Pivot Energy promptly began consulting contractors following 



   

 

approval of the Special Exception. However, most contractors consulted did not want to provide 

or prioritize a quote to us for something that is 25 years away from happening.  

a. Pivot Energy was able to find a contractor and requested a quote on 04/13/23, which was 

returned on 05/12/2023. This quote needed to be updated due to the system size change 

and revised plans/documents were sent to the contractor on 06/08/2023. The revised cost 

estimate was not received until 07/17/2023. Third party decommissioning report was 

received on 07/21/23 and bonding will be signed on 07/31/23. Conditional Final Site Plan 

Approval package will be submitted on week of 08/11/2023. 

 Thank you for your consideration of this request and I will be happy to answer any questions or 

concerns the Board may have. 

Sincerely, 

 

Josh Spencer, P.E., PMP 



X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

200' B.R.L.

200' B
.R

.L.

200' B
.R

.L.

SITE INFORMATION
1. SITE NAME: MDL118 - STILL POND NECK ROAD SOLAR
2. SITE ADDRESS: 26001 STILL POND NECK ROAD

(SOUTHWEST CORNER OF STILL POND NECK RD. AND STILL POND RD.)
WORTON, MD 21667

3. SITE OWNER: RAYMOND & JOYCE STOLTZFUS
267 RIVERVIEW ROAD
PEACH BOTTOM, PA 17563-9717

4. DEVELOPER: 25809A STILL POND NECK, LLC
SETH SHAFER
6865 DEERPATH ROAD, SUITE 330
ELKRIDGE, MD 21075
410-779-9377

5. ENGINEER: BECKER MORGAN GROUP, INC.
C/O TED HASTINGS
312 WEST MAIN STREET, SUITE 300
SALISBURY, MD 21801
410-546-9100

6. GEOGRAPHIC COORDINATES:
LATITUDE: 39°20'31.36"N
LONGITUDE: 76° 4'3.59"W

7. TAX MAP: 12
8. PARCEL: 98
9. DEED BOOK/PAGE: 424/ 342
10.PARCEL AREA: 85 ACRES ±
11.LEASE AREA: 5.00 ACRES ±
12. AREA OF USE: 5.00 ACRES
13.LIMIT OF DISTURBANCE: 9.91 ACRES ±
14.JURISDICTION: KENT COUNTY
15.ZONE:  AGRICULTURAL ZONING DISTRICT (AZD)
16.MINIMUM YARD AND SETBACK REQUIREMENTS FOR UTILITY SCALE SOLAR IS AS FOLLOWS:

FRONT: 200 FEET
REAR: 200 FEET
SIDE: 200 FEET

17.FLOOD ZONE DETERMINATION:
(BASED ON FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAPS PROVIDED BY FEMA)
FIRM MAP: 24029C0155D
EFFECTIVE DATE: MARCH 16, 2015
FIRM ZONE: "X" AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN

18.WATER AND SEWER NOT PROPOSED FOR THE SITE.

DRAWN BY:

DATE:
PROJECT  NO.:

COPYRIGHT  2023

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUE  BLOCK

PROJECT  TITLE

SHEET  TITLE

SCALE:

SHEET

PROJ. MGR.:

C-001LAYER STATE:

26001 STILL POND NECK ROAD
STILL POND
KENT COUNTY,  MD 21667

MDL-118 STILL
POND NECK
ROAD - SOLAR

10/24/2022
2022004.00

ELECTION DISTRICT 3

E.M.S. E.H.H.

LICENSE NUMBER:

EXPIRATION DATE:

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THESE
DOCUMENTS WERE PREPARED OR
APPROVED BY ME, AND THAT I AM A
DULY LICENSED PROFESSIONAL
ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE
STATE OF MARYLAND

30331
09/23/24

JAH

ST
AT

E   OF   MARYLAND

PROFESSIONAL    ENGINEE
R

JE
FF

REY A. HARMAN

No. 30331

06/01/23. NEW ARRAY LAYOUT
.

C-001

1" = 200'

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x3624
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6

North Carolina

309 South Governors Avenue
Dover, DE 19904

302.734.7950

312 West Main Street, Suite 300
Salisbury, MD  21801

410.546.9100

Maryland

www.beckermorgan.com

Delaware

A
E
R
N
C
G
H
I
I
N
T
E
E
E
C
R
T
I
U
N G
RE

910.341.7600
Wilmington, NC  28403

3333 Jaeckle Drive, Suite 120

The Tower at STAR Campus
100 Discovery Boulevard, Suite 102

Newark, DE 19713
302.369.3700

.PDF C:\Temp AutoCAD\AcPublish_26652\202200400-Site-C3D21.dwg, Jun 06, 2023 - 9:08am

 2023-06-06

0

SCALE:  1" = 200'

100 200 400

Do Not Explode - Select Scale

COVER SHEET

9ICINIT<  MAP SCALE : 1" =  2000'

N

SITE

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 48
N/F

ROBERT & JEAN PAYNE
DEED BOOK 445 PAGE 80

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 50
N/F

NANCY MILLER
DEED BOOK 937 PAGE 387

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 107
N/F

JAMES GREENWOOD II
DEED BOOK 693 PAGE 43

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 131
N/F

 JOAQUIM & ARLENE SILVA
DEED BOOK 763 PAGE 58

STILLPOND NECK ROAD

SHEET  INDEX
C-001 COVER SHEET
C-101 EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN
C-201 SITE PLAN
C-401 GRADING PLAN
C-501 EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN
C-502                     ESC & CONSTRUCTION DETAILS
C-901 CONSTRUCTION NOTES AND DETAILS
L-001 FOREST CONSERVATION PLAN
L-101 LANDSCAPE PLAN
L-102 FENCE DETAIL

UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

CONCRETE SIDEWALK, SLAB / PAVING

IMPERVIOUS SURFACED ROAD, DRIVE

INDIVIDUAL TREE OR BUSH

STRUCTURE (CONCRETE, WOOD,

UNDERGROUND GAS MAIN

UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

PAVEMENT TO BE REMOVED

DRAINAGE DITCH OR SWALE

EMBANKMENT SIDESLOPES (DOWN)

ELEVATION SPOT SHOT

PROPERTY OR RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

LIGHT POLE

CONSTRUCTION NOTE

CENTERLINE

BENCH MARK

  METAL, ETC.)

CONTOUR 

OR LOT

WIRE FENCE

N/A

49

EVERGREEN DECIDUOUS

N/A

N/A

N/A

ITEM
SANITARY GRAVITY SEWER LINE,

STORM DRAIN LINE (CMP OR RCP)

STORM DRAIN MANHOLE (S.D.M.H.)

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE (S.M.H.)

SANITARY SEWER FORCE MAIN, SIZE

SIZE & FLOW DIRECTION

WATER VALVE (W.V.)  OR METER (W.M.)

CATCH BASIN

(TELEPHONE OR ELECTRIC OR BOTH)
UTILITY POLE W/ OVERHEAD SERVICE

SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT

WATER MAIN & SIZE

FIRE HYDRANT

& FLOW DIRECTION

PROPOSED
LEGEND

EXISTING

EX. 10" F.M.

EX. 10"S

EX. 10" W

F.H.

U.E.

U.T.

EX. 2" G

X X X

AGRICULTURAL  FENCE

STOCKADE  FENCE

43.55

10" S

12" F.M.

12" W

F.H.

U.E.

U.T.

2" G

X X X

55

25.15
B.C.25.00
T.C.25.50

W.M. W.V. W.M. W.V.

����1 STILL POND NECK
ROAD SOLAR PRO-ECT

KENT CO8NT<�  MAR<LAND
T+IRD ELECTION DISTRICT

S
T

ILL P
O

N
D

 R
O

A
D

�M
D

 S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
8

T
E

 ����PROPOSED
SOLAR FACILITY

TAX MAP 4  PARCEL 14
N/F

THOMAS SIMMONS, JR.
DEED BOOK 1139 PAGE 171

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 1
N/F

CANNERY ROAD FARM, LLC
DEED BOOK 1096 PAGE 216

GENERAL  NOTES : SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS
A. SETBACKS TO ACCOMMODATE REQUIRED LANDSCAPE BUFFER

1. 200 FEET FROM ANY LOT LINE
2. 200 FEET FROM ANY ROAD/AND OR RIGHT-OF WAY
3. 200 FEET FROM ANY ROAD/RIGHT-OF-WAY WITHIN ½ MILE OF A TOWN OR VILLAGE BOUNDARY THAT IS THE

GATEWAY INTO A TOWN OR VILLAGE
4. 200 FEET FROM ANY RESIDENTIAL USE OR ZONING DISTRICT
5. SETBACKS MAY BE REDUCED TO 100 FEET FOR NON-RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT WITH WRITTEN CONSENT

FROM THE PROPERTY OWNERS WHOSE PROPERTY IS ADJACENT TO THE AREA IN WHICH THE SETBACK
REDUCTION IS SOUGHT. THE PLANNING COMMISSION SHALL BE THE REVIEW AGENCY TO DETERMINE THE
APPLICATION OF THIS PROVISION.

6. SETBACKS SHALL BEMEASURED FROM THE OUTERMOST EDGE OF THE NEARESTSOLAR PANELSTRUCTURE
WITHIN THE SOLAR ARRAY INCLUDING SUBSTATIONS.

B. INSTALLATION ANDMAINTENANCE STANDARDS
SOLAR ARRAYS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED AND MAINTAINED ACCORDING TO THE FOLLOWING:

1. IF SOLVENTS ARE REQUIRED FOR CLEANING OF THE SOLAR MODULES, THEY MUST BE BIODEGRADABLE.
ANY UNUSED SOLVENTS MUST BE REMOVED FROM THE SUBJECT PARCEL.

2. ALL BROKEN OR WASTE SOLAR MODULES SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE SUBJECT PARCEL WITHIN 30
DAYS OF BEING TAKEN OUT OF SERVICE, INCLUDING ANY LEACHING PANELS, AND THE SUBJECT PARCEL
SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN GOOD ORDER.

3. ALL WIRING NOT ON THE SOLAR ARRAYS SHALL BE UNDERGROUND EXCEPT WHEN NECESSARY TO
CONNECT TO THE PUBLIC UTILITY.

4. TRANSMISSION WIRES TO CONNECT THE PROJECT TO THE UTILITY INFRASTRUCTURE SHALL NOT CROSS A
ROADWAY OVERHEAD.

5. ANY REQUIRED UTILITY RIGHT OF WAY SHALL BE SECURED THROUGH AN EASEMENT, LEASE, SERVICE
AGREEMENT OR OTHER LEGALLY BINDING DOCUMENT.

6. THE SOLAR ARRAY SHALL BE ENCLOSED BY A FENCE OR OTHER APPROPRIATE BARRIER AT THE INTERIOR
EDGE OF THE REQUIRED LANDSCAPE BUFFER OR IMMEDIATELY ADJACENT TO THE SOLAR ARRAY. THE
FENCE OR BARRIER SHALL:

a. SECURE THE FACILITY AT ALL TIMES TO PREVENT UNAUTHORIZED PERSONS OR VEHICLES FROM
GAINING ACCESS.

b. ALL ACCESS GATES WILL PROVIDE A SIGN THAT IDENTIFIES THE RESPONSIBLE PARTIES OR OWNERS
WITH CURRENT CONTACT INFORMATION.

7. NOISE GENERATED BY THE FACILITY SHALL BE LIMITED BY THE PROJECT DESIGN TO 45 DBAS MEASURED
AT TH PROPERTY LINE, TO BE INDICATED ON THE SITE PLAN BY THE ENGINEER, EXCEPT WHEN A BACK-UP
GENERATOR IS NEEDED FOR MAINTENANCE. CONSTRUCTION ON THE SITE IS EXEMPT FROM THIS
STANDARD.

8. SOLAR ARRAYS, INCLUDING THE ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL COMPONENTS, SHALL CONFORM TO
RELEVANT AND APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE, AND NATIONAL CODES.

9. TO PROTECT ADJACENT PROPERTIES, AND NOT INTERFERE WITH ROADWAYS OR CREATE A SAFETY
HAZARD, EVIDENCE SHALL BE PROVIDED THAT THE SOLAR PANELS ARE DESIGNED TO AVOID GLARE
AND/OR REFLECTION WITH ANTI-REFLECTIVE COATING OR NON-GLARE TECHNOLOGY AND, IF NECESSARY,
HAVE BEEN EVALUATED WITH A SOLAR GLARE HAZARD AND ANALYSIS TOOL.

10.NON-ARRAY USES SUCH AS POWER STORAGE ARE NOT PERMITTED.
C. LANDSCAPE BUFFER FOR UTILITY-SCALE SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS

1. ANY UTILITY SCALE SOLAR FACILITY SHALL COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE FOREST
CONSERVATION ACT. REFORESTATION PLANTING MAY BE INCORPORATED AS LANDSCAPING

2. THE GROSS USABLE AREA FOR PANELS WILL EXCLUDE WETLAND AREAS THAT ARE REGULATED BY THE
MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF THE ENVIRONMENT OR THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR. IMPACTS
ASSOCIATED WITH ACCESS OR INTERIOR ROADS AND UTILITY CROSSINGS SHALL PROVIDE THE
NECESSARY AUTHORIZATION FOR ANY DISTURBANCES.

3. EXISTING TOPSOIL SHALL NOT BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE.
4. A VEGETATED BUFFER THAT IS A MINIMUM OF 60 FEET WIDE AROUND THE PERIMETER OF THE SITE AREA

FRONTING ON ROAD OR RIGHTS OF WAY THAT ARE CONSIDERED GATEWAYS TO TOWNS OR VILLAGES AND
A MINIMUM OF 50 FEET FOR ALL OTHER APPLICATIONS. THIS BUFFER MAY BE LOCATED WITHIN THE
SETBACK AND SHALL EXTEND AROUND THE ENTIRE PROJECT WITH THE EXCEPTION OF ANY BOUNDARIES
CONTIGUOUS TO PRESERVED, FORESTED LANDS THAT ARE RECORDED ON A PLAT.

5. HEALTHY EXISTING VEGETATION WITHIN THE DESIGNATED BUFFER AREA MAY BE USED TO SATISFY THE
SPECIFIC BUFFER STANDARDS.

6. NON-NATIVE PLANT MATERIAL SHALL NOT TOTAL MORE THAN 10% OF ALL PLANTINGS.
7. WHERE A PHASED CONSTRUCTION PLAN IS PROPOSED, THE LANDSCAPE PLAN SHALL IDENTIFY THE

PHASING OF THE PLANTINGS APPLICABLE TO EACH CONSTRUCTION PHASE.
8. NOT MORE THAN 25% OF ANY SINGLE PLANT SPECIES SHOULD BE INCLUDED IN THE BUFFER TO PROMOTE

THE GROWTH OF A NATURAL LANDSCAPE AND AVOID MONOTONY AND UNIFORMITY OF THE THE
VEGETATION SHALL BE THICKLY PLANTED AND OF SUCH SPECIES THAT IT WILL PROVIDE AN OPAQUE
VISUAL BARRIER THAT OBSCURES THE UTILITY SCALE SOLAR ARRAY FROM SIGHT ONCE THE VEGETATION
REACHES MATURITY OR WITHIN FIVE YEARS, WHICHEVER COMES FIRST. A MIX OF EVERGREEN AND
DECIDUOUS TREES,SHRUBS AND BENEFICIAL HABITAT SHALL BE INCLUDED:

a. A MINIMUM OF TWO STAGGERED ROWS OF EVERGREEN TREES THAT AT INSTALLATION SHALL BE AT
LEAST 6 FEET IN HEIGHT, EACH PLANTED NO MORE THAN 10 FEET APART. EVERGREEN TREE
SPECIES SHALL BE A VARIED MIXTURE OF COMPATIBLE TYPES AND ACHIEVE A HEIGHT OF EIGHT
FEET IN A MINIMUM OF 2 YEARS.

b. IN ADDITION TO THE EVERGREEN TREES, NATIVE DECIDUOUS OR SHADE TREES WITH A MINIMUM
SIZE AT INSTALLATION OF 2-INCH CALIPER SHALL BE INTERSPERSED TO ENHANCE THE EVERGREEN
SCREENING ALONG WITH UNDERSTORY TREES WITH A MINIMUM SIZE OF INSTALLATION OF 1-INCH
CALIPER OR 6 FEET IN OVERALL HEIGHT OR GREATER IF REQUIRED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION
TO ADDRESS GATEWAY AREAS.

c. SHRUBS WITH A MINIMUM SIZE AT INSTALLATION OF 24 INCHES IN HEIGHT OR 30 INCHES IN SPREAD.
d. THE BUFFER SHALL INCLUDE A FLOWERING GROUND COVER FOR POLLINATORS, WARM SEASON

GRASSES AND OTHER BENEFICIAL HABITAT. THE GROUND COVER SEED MIXTURE SHALL INCLUDE A
MINIMUM OF 10 PLANT SPECIES WITH A MINIMUM OF 2 FLOWERING SEASONS. LAWNS OUTSIDE THE
REQUIRED BUFFER ARE DISCOURAGED; PLANTINGS FOR POLLINATORS ARE ENCOURAGED IN ALL
PLANTED AREAS.

e. THE HEIGHT OF PROPOSED PLANTING MAY REQUIRE ALTERNATIVES BASED UPON THE SITE
ELEVATION AND VISIBILITY FROM ADJACENT PROPERTIES AND ROADS AND/OR RIGHTS OF WAYS. IF
NECESSARY, AN ELEVATION OR PERSPECTIVE ILLUSTRATION EXHIBIT SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH
VIEWPOINTS FROM RELEVANT LOCATIONS AROUND THE SITE FOR THE PLANNING COMMISSION TO
CONSIDER.

D. A LANDSCAPE BERM SHALL BE PROVIDED AT A MINIMUM OF THREE (3) FEET HIGH TO ASSIST IN SCREENING. THE
DESIGN OF THE BERM SHALL BE SUCH THAT THE NATURAL DRAINAGE PATTERNS OF THE SITE WILL NOT BE
ALTERED. THE BERM REQUIREMENT MAY BE WAIVED IN PART OR TOTALSUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING
CONDITIONS:

1. A MINIMUM OF TWO STAGGERED ROWS OF EVERGREEN TREES THAT AT INSTALLATION ARE AT LEAST 8
FEET IN HEIGHT AND PLANTED NO MORE THAN 10 FEET APART

2. INTERSPERSED SHADE TREES HAVE A MINIMUM SIZE AT INSTALLATION OF 2.5-INCH CALIPER
3. UNDERSTORY STORY TREES WITH A MINIMUM SIZE AT INSTALLATION OF 1.5-INCH CALIPER OR 6 FEET IN

OVERALL HEIGHT
4. SHRUBS WITH A MINIMUM SIZE AT INSTALLATION OF 30 INCHES IN HEIGHT.
5. THE LANDSCAPING PLAN IS DEEMED TO SCREEN ELEVATIONS OF THE SITE ADEQUATELY WITHIN 2 YEARS.

E. IRRIGATION SHALL BE PROVIDED TO ASSIST IN MAINTAINING PLANT MATERIALS IN A HEALTHY CONDITION FOR
ALL NEWLY CREATED LANDSCAPE BUFFER AREAS. PLANTS SHALL BE WATERED IN A MANNER ADEQUATE TO
ENSURE ESTABLISHMENT AND SURVIVAL. THE LANDSCAPE PLAN SHALL INCLUDE A WATERING SCHEDULE
APPROPRIATE FOR THE PROPOSED PLANTINGS, WHICH MAY INCLUDE SERVICE BY ON-SITE IRRIGATION OR
WATER TRUCK, UNTIL THE PLANT MATERIAL IS SUFFICIENTLY ESTABLISHED TO SURVIVE ON NATURAL SOIL
MOISTURE. AN IRRIGATION SYSTEM IS SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:

1. THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM SHALL BE DESIGNED TO PREVENT RUNOFF, LOW HEAD DRAINAGE, OVERSPRAY,
OR OTHER SIMILAR CONDITIONS WHERE IRRIGATION WATER FLOWS ONTO NONTARGETED AREAS SUCH AS
ADJACENT PROPERTIES, ROADWAYS, OR STRUCTURES.

2. ALL AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION SYSTEMS SHALL BE DESIGNED TO MINIMIZE WATER USAGE AND SHALL BE
MANUALLY SHUT OFF DURING WATER EMERGENCIES OR WATER RATIONING PERIODS.

3. AN ALTERNATIVE FORM OF IRRIGATION FOR A PARTICULAR SITE MAY BE APPROVED THROUGH THE
APPLICABLE REVIEW PROCESS UPON DETERMINING THAT UNDERGROUND IRRIGATION IS NOT NECESSARY
OR AVAILABLE FOR THE TYPE OF PLANT MATERIAL BEING PROPOSED.

F. A MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR THE LANDSCAPE PLAN SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH A SURETY OR OTHER
FINANCIAL ASSURANCE TO COVER REPLACEMENT OF THE PLANTINGS AND IRRIGATION SYSTEMS. ALL PLANTINGS
SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A LIVE, HEALTHY CONDITION FOR THE DURATION OF THE SOLAR ARRAY LIFE AND SHALL
BE REPLACED BY THE SOLAR ARRAY OPERATOR AS NECESSARY WITH APPROPRIATELY SIZED PLANT MATERIAL
AS NECESSARY TO MAINTAIN ALL REQUIRED BUFFERING STANDARDS.

G. THE SURETY MAY BE PROVIDED ON A PHASED BASIS PER THE LANDSCAPE PHASING PLAN AND SHALL BE HELD
BY THE COUNTY FOR A PERIOD OF THREE YEARS FOLLOWING PLANTING, AFTER WHICH THE COUNTY, UPON
SATISFACTORY INSPECTION OF THE LANDSCAPE BUFFER MAY RELEASE 50% OF THE SURETY, AND THE
REMAINING 50% MAY BE RELEASED AFTER AN ADDITIONAL TWO YEARS. THE COUNTY THEN RESERVES THE
RIGHT TO INSPECT AND REQUIRE REPLACEMENT FOR THE DURATION OF THE SOLAR ARRAY.

H. ENTRANCESTO THE PROJECT SHOULD BE DESIGNED TO ENSURE THAT NEIGHBORING PROPERTIES, PUBLIC
RIGHTS-OF WAYS AND ROADS ARE NOT EXPOSED TO AN UNSCREENED VIEW THROUGH THE ENTRANCEWAY. THE
USE OF A WIRE MESH OR CHAIN-LINK GATE OR FENCE WITH VINYL INTERWOVEN STRIPS IS NOT ACCEPTABLE.

I. THE PROJECT SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE FEDERAL AND STATE REGULATIONS, INCLUDING BY NOT
LIMITED TO OBTAINING A CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY FROM THE PUBLIC SERVICE
COMMISSION IF REQUIRED, AND IN THE REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF THE UTILITY SCALE SOLAR ARRAY AND ALL
OF ITS COMPONENTS.

J. THE PROJECT SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL OTHER APPLICABLE REGULATIONS, AS CONTAINED IN THE PUBLIC LAWS
OF KENT COUNTY.

K. THE PROJECT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE BOND-RELATED REQUIREMENTS BELOW:
1. A BOND, SURETY LETTER, OR OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT FOR REMOVAL OF ALL SOLAR-RELATED

STRUCTURES AND NON-VEGETATIVE IMPROVEMENTS ON THE SITE AND FOR THE RESTORATION OF THE
SITE TO ITS PREPROJECT CONDITION SHALL BE SUBMITTED, TO BE BASED ON BONA FIDE WRITTEN
ESTIMATES PREPARED BY THIRD-PARTY CONSULTANTS;

2. THE COST ESTIMATE SHALL ADDRESS PROVISIONS FOR THE SAFE REMOVAL AND PROPER DISPOSAL OF
ALL COMPONENTS OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING ANY COMPONENTS CONTAINING HAZARDOUS OR TOXIC
MATERIALS INCLUDING LEACHATES;

3. AN ESTIMATE FOR REVIEW BY COUNTY SHALL BE SUBMITTED;
4. BOND SHALL BE MAINTAINED FOR THE LIFE OF THE PROJECT;
5. BONDING MAY BE IN COORDINATION WITH OTHER REQUIRED BONDING BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND, PSC,

PULJ, PPRP, ETC.;
6. IN THE EVENT THAT NO OTHER BONDING IS REQUIRED, THEN A BOND IN FAVOR OF THE COUNTY SHALL BE

REQUIRED;
7. SAID BONDING SHALL INCLUDE AN ESCALATOR PROVISION BASED ON CHANGES TO THE COST OF

RESTORATION, WHICH SHALL BE EVALUATED AND UPDATED EVERY FIVE YEARS;
8. SAID BOND SHALL BE FOR 110% OF THE ABOVE ESTIMATE(S) AND/OR UPDATED ESTIMATE(S) FROM

FIVEYEAR REVIEWS;
9. SAID BOND SHALL BE REDEEMABLE BY THE COUNTY UPON A FINDING THAT THE PROJECT HAS BEEN

ABANDONED, WITH OR WITHOUT NOTICE FROM PROJECT OPERATORS, IF PROJECT HAS, IN FACT, BEEN
ABANDONED BY ITS OPERATORS; AND

10.THE PROJECT WILL BE CONSIDERED TO BE ABANDONED, IF THERE IS NO ELECTRIC GENERATION PROVIDED
TO THE GRID FOR A PERIOD OF TWELVE (12) CONSECUTIVE MONTHS.

APPROVED:

DATE KENT COUNT HEALTH DEPARTMENT
APPROVING AUTHORITY

APPROVED:

DATE KENT COUNT PLANNING COMMISSION

APPROVED:

DATE KENT COUNT PLANNING DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAD 83 (2011)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAVD 88



SOIL TYPE LISTING
BS BIBB SILT LOAM B/D

BUA BUTLERTOWN-MATTAPEX SILT LOAMS, 0 TO 2 PERCENT SLOPES C

BUB2 BUTLERTOWN-MATTAPEX SILT LOAMS, 2 TO 5 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED C

BUC2 BUTLERTOWN-MATTAPEX SILT LOAMS, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED C

CEC2 COLTS NECK LOAM, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED B

CNE COLTS NECK AND SASSAFRAS SOILS, 15 TO 40 PERCENT SLOPES B

IK IUKA SILT LOAM, RARELY FLOODED C

MNC2 MATAPEAKE SILT LOAM, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED B

MTCA MATTAPEX SILT LOAM, 0 TO 2 PERCENT SLOPES, MID-ATLANTIC COASTAL PLAIN C

SGC2 SASSAFRAS GRAVELLY LOAM, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED B

SGC3 SASSAFRAS GRAVELLY LOAM, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, SEVERELY ERODED B

BuA

BuC2
BuB2

BuC2

CeC2

MtcA

SgC3

Bs
CnE

SgC2
BuA

MnC2

CnE

CnE

BuA

BuB2

Ik

FIR

FIP

FIPC

FSTONE

FIP

200' B.R.L.

200' B
.R

.L.

79
80

81

79

77

7879

78

7977

76

80

79

78

77

76

75

74

73

72

71

7070

6969

79

80

78

77

76

75

74

73

72

73

757778

76

79

77

77

S 83° 40' 35" W
310.00'

S 78° 45' 50" W

428.23'

N
 3° 30' 47" W

2011.83 '

79

78
77

78

77

76

75

74

73

72

71

70

69

68

67

77

77

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 48
N/F

ROBERT & JEAN PAYNE
DEED BOOK 445 PAGE 80

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 50
N/F

NANCY MILLER
DEED BOOK 937 PAGE 387

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 107
N/F

JAMES GREENWOOD II
DEED BOOK 693 PAGE 43

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 131
N/F

 JOAQUIM & ARLENE SILVA
DEED BOOK 763 PAGE 58

EXISTING 1,034 SF
CONCRETE PAD
TO BE REMOVED

STILL POND NECK ROAD

S
T

ILL P
O

N
D

 R
O

A
D

(M
D

 S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 292)

S 82° 14' 26" W
270.18'

S 8° 06' 15" E

727.00'

S 71° 36' 25" W

1153.08'

S 83° 40' 35" W
143.76'

EXISTING
TREELINE

EXISTING
TREELINE

67
69

70

72

73

74

71

75
76

77

78

79

72

74

75

76

54

49

46

44

42

40

57

60

69

73

75

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

76

77

71

75

78

79

78

77

76

75

73

72

74

75 76

77

78

79 80

81

80

81

82

81

82

83

84

80

79

78

79

80

81

82

81

80

79

78

100.00'

EXISTING BLUE LINE STREAM
(MD MERLIN ONLINE)

100 FT STREAM BUFFER

200' B
.R

.L.

EXISTING COMPACTED
DIRT ROAD

EXISTING
AGRICULTURAL
DRAINAGE SWALE

EXISTING DITCH

EXISTING
AGRICULTURAL

DRAINAGE SWALE

S 01° 58' 25" E
200.00'

DEFUNCT IRRIGATION WELL TO BE
INSPECTED BY A WELL DRILLER

LICENSED BY THE MARYLAND STATE
BOARD OF WELL DRILLERS AND

ABANDONED PER MDE GUIDELINES.

80

C-101

1" = 100'

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x3624
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6

North Carolina

309 South Governors Avenue
Dover, DE 19904

302.734.7950

312 West Main Street, Suite 300
Salisbury, MD  21801

410.546.9100

Maryland

www.beckermorgan.com

Delaware

A
E
R
N
C
G
H
I
I
N
T
E
E
E
C
R
T
I
U
N G
RE

910.341.7600
Wilmington, NC  28403

3333 Jaeckle Drive, Suite 120

The Tower at STAR Campus
100 Discovery Boulevard, Suite 102

Newark, DE 19713
302.369.3700

.PDF

E.H.H.

.. .
.

C:\Temp AutoCAD\AcPublish_26652\202200400-Site-C3D21.dwg, Jun 06, 2023 - 9:08am

 2023-06-06

DRAWN BY:

DATE:
PROJECT  NO.:

COPYRIGHT  2023

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUE  BLOCK

PROJECT  TITLE

SHEET  TITLE

SCALE:

SHEET

PROJ. MGR.:

C-101LAYER STATE:

26001 STILL POND NECK ROAD
STILL POND
KENT COUNTY,  MD 21667

MDL���� STILL
POND NECK
ROAD � SOLAR

10/24/2022
2022004.00

ELECTION DISTRICT 3

E.M.S. E.H.H.

LICENSE NUMBER:

EXPIRATION DATE:

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THESE
DOCUMENTS WERE PREPARED OR
APPROVED BY ME, AND THAT I AM A
DULY LICENSED PROFESSIONAL
ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE
STATE OF MARYLAND

30331
09/23/24

JAH

ST
AT

E   OF   MARYLAND

PROFESSIONAL    ENGINEE
R

JE
FF

REY A. HARMAN

No. 30331

06/01/23. NEW ARRAY LAYOUT
.

0

SCALE:  1" = 100'

50 100 200

Do Not Explode - Select Scale

EXISTING
CONDITIONS PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAD 83 (2011)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAVD 88



SOIL TYPE LISTING
BS BIBB SILT LOAM B/D

BUA BUTLERTOWN-MATTAPEX SILT LOAMS, 0 TO 2 PERCENT SLOPES C

BUB2 BUTLERTOWN-MATTAPEX SILT LOAMS, 2 TO 5 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED C

BUC2 BUTLERTOWN-MATTAPEX SILT LOAMS, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED C

CEC2 COLTS NECK LOAM, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED B

CNE COLTS NECK AND SASSAFRAS SOILS, 15 TO 40 PERCENT SLOPES B

IK IUKA SILT LOAM, RARELY FLOODED C

MNC2 MATAPEAKE SILT LOAM, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED B

MTCA MATTAPEX SILT LOAM, 0 TO 2 PERCENT SLOPES, MID-ATLANTIC COASTAL PLAIN C

SGC2 SASSAFRAS GRAVELLY LOAM, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED B

SGC3 SASSAFRAS GRAVELLY LOAM, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, SEVERELY ERODED B

BuA

BuC2
BuB2

BuC2

CeC2

MtcA

SgC3

Bs
CnE

SgC2
BuA

MnC2

CnE

CnE

BuA

BuB2

Ik

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

X

FIR

FIP

FIPC

FSTONE

FIP

200' B.R.L.

200' B
.R

.L.

79
80

81

79

77

7879

78

7977

76

80

79

78

77

76

75

74

73

72

71

7070

6969

79

80

78

77

76

75

74

73

72

73

757778

76

79

77

77

S 83° 40' 35" W
310.00'

S 78° 45' 50" W

428.23'

N
 3° 30' 47" W

2011.83 '

79

78
77

78

77

76

75

74

73

72

71

70

69

68

67

77

77

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 48
N/F

ROBERT & JEAN PAYNE
DEED BOOK 445 PAGE 80

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 50
N/F

NANCY MILLER
DEED BOOK 937 PAGE 387

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 107
N/F

JAMES GREENWOOD II
DEED BOOK 693 PAGE 43

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 131
N/F

 JOAQUIM & ARLENE SILVA
DEED BOOK 763 PAGE 58

STILL POND NECK ROAD

S
T

ILL P
O

N
D

 R
O

A
D

(M
D

 S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 292)

S 82° 14' 26" W
270.18'

S 8° 06' 15" E

727.00'

S 71° 36' 25" W

1153.08'

S 83° 40' 35" W
143.76'

EXISTING
TREELINE

EXISTING
TREELINE

67
69

70

72

73

74

71

75
76

77

78

79

72

74

75

76

54

49

46

44

42

40

57

60

69

73

75

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

76

77

71

75

78

79

78

77

76

75

73

72

74

75 76

77

78

79 80

81

80

81

82

81

82

83

84

80

79

78

79

80

81

82

81

80

79

78

100.00'

EXISTING BLUE LINE STREAM
(MD MERLIN ONLINE)

100 FT STREAM BUFFER

200' B
.R

.L.

60.00'

60
.0

0'

60.00'

40'

16
'

10.00'

60
.0

0'

S 01° 58' 25" E
200.00'

80

M
VU

G
M

VU
G

M
VU

G

GROUND SLOPE: 0%-5%
INTER-ROW SPACING = 12.98 FT

10 FT WIDE GRAVEL
ACCESS ROAD
TOTAL AREA: 4,853 SF

POI. MV INTERCONNECTION
LAT: N39° 20' 36.38"
LONG: W76° 03' 59.35"
DISTANCE: 430 FT

SOLAR EQUIPMENT
PAD REFER TO
C-901 FOR DETAIL

REMAINING PORTION OF
COMPACTED DIRT ROAD

60' WIDE PERIMETER
LANDSCAPE BUFFER

DEFUNCT IRRIGATION WELL TO BE
INSPECTED BY A WELL DRILLER
LICENSED BY THE MARYLAND STATE
BOARD OF WELL DRILLERS AND
ABANDONED PER MDE GUIDELINES.

AG FENCE
AREA: 5.00 ACRES
PERIMETER: 1,955 FT
REFER TO LANDSCAPING
PLANS FOR DETAILS

EXISTING AGRICULTURAL
DRAINAGE SWALE TO REMAIN 60' WIDE PERIMETER

LANDSCAPE BUFFER

NOISE GENERATED BY THE
FACILITY SHALL BE LESS

THAN 45 dBAs MEASURED
AT THE PROPERTY LINE,

EXISTING CULVERT
CROSSING TO BE
UTILIZED

PV MODULES

AG FENCE
AREA: 5.00 ACRES
PERIMETER: 1,955 FT
REFER TO LANDSCAPING
PLANS FOR DETAILS

MEDIUM VOLTAGE
UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

UTILITY POLES

304.79'

266.84'

532.07'

27
'

106'

C-201

1" = 100'

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x3624
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6

North Carolina

309 South Governors Avenue
Dover, DE 19904

302.734.7950

312 West Main Street, Suite 300
Salisbury, MD  21801

410.546.9100

Maryland

www.beckermorgan.com

Delaware

A
E
R
N
C
G
H
I
I
N
T
E
E
E
C
R
T
I
U
N G
RE

910.341.7600
Wilmington, NC  28403

3333 Jaeckle Drive, Suite 120

The Tower at STAR Campus
100 Discovery Boulevard, Suite 102

Newark, DE 19713
302.369.3700

.PDF

E.H.H. E.H.H.

C:\Temp AutoCAD\AcPublish_26652\202200400-Site-C3D21.dwg, Jun 06, 2023 - 9:08am

 2023-06-06

DRAWN BY:

DATE:
PROJECT  NO.:

COPYRIGHT  2023

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUE  BLOCK

PROJECT  TITLE

SHEET  TITLE

SCALE:

SHEET

PROJ. MGR.:

C-201LAYER STATE:

26001 STILL POND NECK ROAD
STILL POND
KENT COUNTY,  MD 21667

MDL���� STILL
POND NECK
ROAD � SOLAR

10/24/2022
2022004.00

ELECTION DISTRICT 3

E.M.S. E.H.H.

LICENSE NUMBER:

EXPIRATION DATE:

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THESE
DOCUMENTS WERE PREPARED OR
APPROVED BY ME, AND THAT I AM A
DULY LICENSED PROFESSIONAL
ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE
STATE OF MARYLAND

30331
09/23/24

JAH

ST
AT

E   OF   MARYLAND

PROFESSIONAL    ENGINEE
R

JE
FF

REY A. HARMAN

No. 30331

06/01/23. NEW ARRAY LAYOUT
.

0

SCALE:  1" = 100'

50 100 200

Do Not Explode - Select Scale

PROPOSED SITE
PLAN

DETAIL A
SCALE: 1" = 10'

REFER TO
"DETAIL A"

THIS SHEET

22.53'

7.50'

3.
72

'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAD 83 (2011)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAVD 88



mcarper
Text Box
The following items are from the previous hearing and decision. 

















September 1, 2022 

Dr. Al Townshend 
Kent County Board of Appeals 
400 High Street 
Chestertown, MD 21620 

RE: 25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC – Special Exception 
Utility-Scale Solar Energy System in the Agricultural Zoning District (AZD) 

Dear Dr. Townshend, 

At its meeting on September 1, 2022, the Kent County Planning Commission reviewed the application of 25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC, 
requesting a special exception for a utility-scale solar energy system in the Agricultural Zoning District (AZD) on an 85-acre farm owned 
by Raymond and Joyce Stoltzfus. The property is located at 26001 Still Pond Neck Road in the Third Election District and is on the 
southwest corner of the intersection of Still Pond Neck Road and Still Pond Road. The proposed 1 MW array of panels will be enclosed 
within a perimeter fence with an area of 5 acres on the northwestern corner of the property, and the entrance will be from Still Pond 
Neck Road. All setback, landscaping, and structural requirements have been addressed in the site plan. The surrounding area is 
predominantly farmland and woodland. 

Following discussion, the Planning Commission voted to make a favorable recommendation for the special exception of a utility-scale 
solar energy system in the AZD. The Planning Commission recommends the following conditions should the Board of Appeals grant 
approval: 

▪ The applicant obtains all state and federal permits.
▪ The project shall comply with all the bond-related requirements as listed in Article VI, Section 11 of the Land Use Ordinance.
▪ Final site plan approval is granted by the Planning Commission.

The decision was based on the following findings of fact:  

▪ Traffic Patterns will not be affected, there will be no impact to community facilities and services, and there will be minimal noise
and no odor, noxious materials, or other nuisances.

▪ The proposal is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and with the general intent and the use, design, and environmental
standards found in the Land Use Ordinance.

▪ Year-round screening, as specified in the Land Use Ordinance, shall be provided, and the panel array will not exceed the maximum
allowable height.

▪ The solar collection system will be incidental to the use of the farm, and it will not adversely impact adjacent properties, water
quality, fish, or wildlife and plant habitat.

Sincerely,  
Kent County Planning Commission 

Joe Hickman 
Chair 

FJH/mc 
cc:  Seth Shafer, P.E. Pivot Energy 

Bruce Wilson, Pivot Energy 
Ted Hastings, Becker Morgan Group 



25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC: Special Exception – Utility-Scale Solar in AZD – 1  
 

Department of Planning, Housing, and Zoning 

 
 
TO:   Kent County Board of Appeals 
FROM:   Mark Carper, Associate Planner 
MEETING:  September 1, 2022 
SUBJECT:  25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC 
 Special Exception – Utility-Scale Solar in the AZD 
 

Executive Summary 
 
REQUEST BY APPLICANT 
The applicant, 25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC, is requesting a special exception to construct and operate a 
utility-scale solar energy system in the Agricultural Zoning District (AZD) on an 85-acre farm owned by 
Raymond and Joyce Stoltzfus. The property is located on the southwest corner of the intersection of Still 
Pond Neck Road and Still Pond Road in the Third Election District, and it has been assigned the street 
address of 26001 Still Pond Neck Road. The application has been revised and resubmitted in order to 
comply with a related Zoning Text Amendment adopted on August 2, 2022. 
 

The area is predominantly farmland with scattered residential properties. The proposed 1 MW array of 
panels will be enclosed within a perimeter fence with an area of 5 acres on the northwestern corner of 
the property, and the entrance will be from Still Pond Neck Road. All setback, landscaping, and structural 
requirements have been addressed in the site plan. Assessments for glare and visibility indicate that the 
proposed solar array would be unnoticeable and would not reflect glare on adjacent properties or 
roadways. The proposal is not inconsistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and there will be no adverse 
impacts to adjacent properties or the surrounding area. 
 

PUBLIC PROCESS 
Per Maryland State Law and Article VII, Section 6.2 of the Kent County Land Use Ordinance, the Planning 
Commission shall review and make a recommendation to the Board of Appeals for special exceptions.   
 

SUMMARY OF THE STAFF REPORT 
The intent of the special exception provisions is to provide for certain uses, which because of their unique 
characteristics, cannot be distinctly listed as a permitted use in a particular District. The Board of Appeals 
must consider the impact of such uses upon neighboring uses, the surrounding area, and the public need 
for the particular use at the particular location.  Limitations and standards are established by the special 
exception performance standards.  
 

The applicant has addressed all specific and general performance standards and has outlined its proposed 
uses onsite. The proposed use meets the standards and requirements for a special exception for a utility-
scale solar energy system in the AZD.  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission send a favorable recommendation to the Board of 
Appeals in granting the special exception with the following conditions: 
 The applicant obtains all state and federal permits. 
 The project shall comply with all the bond-related requirements as listed in Article VI, Section 11 

of the Land Use Ordinance. 
 Final site plan approval is granted by the Planning Commission.  
 The special exception will lapse after the expiration of one year if no substantial construction in 

accordance with the plans herein presented occurs.  



25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC: Special Exception – Utility-Scale Solar in AZD – 2  
 

PRELIMINARY STAFF REPORT 

 
TO:   Kent County Board of Appeals 
SUBJECT:  25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC 

Special Exception – Utility-Scale Solar in the AZD 
DATE:   August 25, 2022 
 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL 
 
The applicant, 25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC, is requesting a special exception to construct and operate a 
utility-scale solar energy system in the Agricultural Zoning District (AZD) on an 85-acre farm owned by 
Raymond and Joyce Stoltzfus. The property is located on the southwest corner of the intersection of Still 
Pond Neck Road and Still Pond Road in the Third Election District, and it has been assigned the street 
address of 26001 Still Pond Neck Road.  
 
The area is predominantly farmland with scattered residential properties. The proposed 1 MW array of 
panels will be enclosed within a perimeter fence with an area of 5 acres on the northwestern corner of 
the property, and the entrance will be from Still Pond Neck Road. All setback, landscaping, and structural 
requirements have been addressed in the site plan. The proposal is not inconsistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan, and there will be no adverse impacts to adjacent properties or the surrounding area. 
 
HISTORY 
 
The application has been revised and resubmitted in order to comply with a related Zoning Text 
Amendment adopted on August 2, 2022. On first application for a special exception, the Planning 
Commission sent a favorable recommendation to the Board of Appeals for approval.  
 
RELEVANT ISSUES 
 
I. Special Exception – Specific Standards for Utility-Scale Solar Energy Systems on Farms in AZD and RCD 
 

A. Comprehensive Plan: 
 Retain the Agricultural Zoning District 

 
B. Applicable Law:  

Article VI, Section 7.57.25 of the Kent County Land Use Ordinance grants the Board of Appeals the 
authority to grant a special exception for solar energy systems, utility scale, on farms in the AZD 
and RCD provided: 
 
a. A solar collection device or combination of devices are designed and located to avoid glare or 

reflection onto adjacent properties and adjacent roadways and shall not interfere with traffic 
or create a safety hazard. 

b. Screening, capable of providing year-round screening, is provided along all sides that do not 
collect energy. 

c. Roof mounted solar collection devices shall not extend more than 10 feet from the top of the 
roof. The total height of the building, including the solar collection devices, shall comply with 
the height regulations established for each zoning district. 

d. Solar collection devices shall not exceed 38 feet in height. 
e. The solar collection system shall be incidental to the use of the farm. 
f. Installation of the solar collection system shall not adversely impact adjacent properties. 



25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC: Special Exception – Utility-Scale Solar in AZD – 3  
 

g. All structures associated with the solar collection system shall be neither visually intrusive nor 
inappropriate to their setting. 

h. All solar collection devices shall register with the Department of Emergency Services and shall 
submit a map noting the location of the solar collection devices and the panel disconnect. 

i. Other than wire size, there shall be no alteration of utility infrastructure to accommodate the 
system. 

j. The area of solar panel arrays may not exceed 5 acres. The area of the solar panel arrays shall 
be measured as the area within solar panel arrays’ security fence. Adjacent properties shall 
not aggregate solar collection panels to achieve an area exceeding 5 acres. 

k. In AZD, only the five-acre maximum area of solar panel arrays, as measured in subsection j., 
is considered development and counted toward the maximum percentage of the property in 
lots. 

l. Tree removal shall be minimized and any removal shall be mitigated in accordance with the 
Critical Area Program requirements. 

m. The applicant shall demonstrate that a utility scale solar energy system shall not unreasonably 
interfere with the view of, or from, sites of significant public interest such as public parks, a 
national or state designated scenic byway, a structure listed in the Kent County Historic Site 
Survey, an historic district, or the Chesapeake Bay and its tributaries. 

 
C. Staff Comments: 
 A glare assessment was submitted, indicating that of ten observation points with potential for 

glare, only one was within a range that can cause temporary visual impairment in the form of 
an after-image (yellow glare). Due to the minimal slopes at the project site, the landscape 
screening buffer will effectively mitigate visibility of the array and any glare to this observation 
point and others and nearby roads. The proposed project will not interfere with traffic or 
create a safety hazard. 

 Year-round screening, as specified in the Land Use Ordinance, shall be provided, and the panel 
array will be lower than the maximum allowable height. 

 The solar collection system will be incidental to use of the farm, and it will not adversely 
impact adjacent properties. 

 The area of use, defined as the collection of solar panels and associated equipment to be 
enclosed in perimeter fencing, will not exceed 5 acres on site. The area of use does not include 
the required landscape buffers. 

 No tree removal is proposed, and a forest stand delineation has been submitted.  
 A visibility assessment has been provided, indicating that proposed buffer will successfully 

mitigate visibility from all of the observation points and the roads. Visibility is already 
mitigated by existing terrain, vegetation, and/or structures to 7 of the 10 observation points.   

 
II. Special Exception – General Standards 
 

A. Comprehensive Plan: 
 “Quality of Life and Sustainability: A high quality of life is achieved through universal 

stewardship of the land, water, and air resulting in sustainable communities and protection 
of the environment.” (page 3) 

 
B. Applicable Laws:  

Article V, Section 1.3.26.5 of the Kent County Land Use Ordinance establishes that solar energy 
systems, utility scale on farms, may be granted as a special exception in the Agricultural Zoning 
District (AZD). 

 



25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC: Special Exception – Utility-Scale Solar in AZD – 4  
 

Article VII, Section 2 of the Kent County Land Use Ordinance establishes the following standards 
for consideration of special exceptions: 

 
The Board shall make findings on the following where appropriate: 

 
1. The nature of the proposed site, including its size and shape and the proposed size, shape, 

and arrangement of structures; 
2. Traffic Patterns; 
3. Nature of surrounding area; 
4. Proximity of dwellings, houses of worship, schools, public structures, and other places of 

public gathering; 
5. The impact of the development or project on community facilities and services; 
6. Preservation of cultural and historic landmarks, significant natural features and trees; 
7. Probable effect of noise, vibration, smoke and particulate matter, toxic matter, odor, fire or 

explosion hazards, or glare upon surrounding properties; 
8. The purpose and intent of this Ordinance as set forth in Article II; 
9. Design, environmental, and other standards of this Ordinance as set forth in Article V; 
10. The most appropriate use of land and structure; 
11. Conservation of property values; 
12. The proposed development’s impact on water quality; 
13. Impact on fish, wildlife and plant habitat; 
14. Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan, Land Use Ordinance, and where applicable the 

Village Master Plan; 
15. Consistency with the Critical Area Program; and 
16. Compatibility with existing and planned land use as described in the Comprehensive Plan, 

Land Use Ordinance, and where applicable the Village Master Plan. 
 

C. Staff Comments: 
 The entrance of this project is Still Pond Neck Road, which is a gateway road into the Village 

of Coleman, and, as such, a vegetated buffer of 60 feet around the perimeter of the site area 
has been proposed as required. 

 Traffic patterns will not be affected. 
 The surrounding area of the proposed site is predominantly farmland and woodland. The 

southern portion of the property is wooded, and a Forest Stand Delineation has been 
submitted for the 19.4 acres of existing forest. 

 Two residential properties are adjacent to the farm on the eastern side, and the Village of 
Coleman is approximately a half mile to the west. Landscape screening surrounding the 
energy system is planned as to the specifications of the Land Use Ordinance. 

 There will be no impact on community facilities and services. 
 The proposed use does not create an unacceptable impact by way of noise, odor, noxious 

materials, or other nuisances. 
 The proposed use of the structures and property should not have a negative impact on 

property values.  
 The proposed use will not have a negative impact on water quality or negative impact on fish, 

wildlife, or plant habitat.  
 The proposal is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan as it will provide zero emissions solar 

generating facilities to which DP&L customers would be eligible to sign up for the Community 
Solar benefits with a potential savings on electricity. 

 The proposal is consistent with the general intent and the use, design, and environmental 
standards found in the Land Use Ordinance. 



25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC: Special Exception – Utility-Scale Solar in AZD – 5  
 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends granting the special exception with the following conditions: 
 
 The applicant obtains all state and federal permits. 
 The project shall comply with all the bond-related requirements as listed in Article VI, Section 11 

of the Land Use Ordinance. 
 Final site plan approval is granted by the Planning Commission.  
 The special exception will lapse after the expiration of one year if no substantial construction in 

accordance with the plans herein presented occurs.  



Revised – 09/17/21 

BOARD OF APPEALS APPLICATION 

Kent County Department of Planning, Housing and Zoning 
Kent County Government Center 

400 High Street • Chestertown, MD 21620 
410-778-7423 (phone) • 410-810-2932 (fax)

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF: 
(Name, Address and Telephone Number of Applicant)) 

Email: ____________________________________ 

Please provide the email of the one person who will be responsible for responding to comments. Only this 
person will be contacted by staff and will be the person responsible for forwarding the comments or requests for 
additional information to any other interested parties. EMAIL: __________________________________________ 

TO THE KENT COUNTY BOARD OF APPEALS:  In accordance with Article  Section 

of the Kent County Zoning Ordinance, as amended, request is hereby made for: 

 Appealing Decision of Kent County Zoning Administrator  Variance 
 Special Exception   Nonconforming Use 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED: 

Located on: (Name of Road, etc.) 

In the    Election District of Kent County. 

Size of lot or parcel of Land: 
Map:  Parcel: Lot #: Deed Ref: 

List buildings already on property: 

If subdivision, indicate lot and block number:  

If there is a homeowner’s association, give name and address of association: 

PRESENT ZONING OF PROPERTY: 

DESCRIPTION OF RELIEF REQUESTED: (List here in detail what you wish to do with property that requires 

the Appeal Hearing.)  

If appealing decision of Zoning Administrator, list date of their decision: 

Present owner(s) of property:   Telephone: 

For Office Use Only: 
Case Number/Date Filed: 
Filed by: 
Applicant: 
Planning Commission:  
Date of Hearing:  
Parties Notified:  
Notice in Paper:  
Property Posted:  

25809a Still Pond Neck, LLC

6865 Deerpath Road Suite 330

Elkridge, MD 21075

cory.mccandless@sgc-power.com

cory.mccandless@sgc-power.com

Raymond & Joyce Stoltzfus

1 Part 8 11

(717) 471-3130

ü

26001 Still Pond Neck Road
Third

85 acres
12 98 424/ 342

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Agricultural Zoning District (AZD)

N/A

26001

Corner of Still Pond Neck Road and Still Pond Road



Revised – 09/17/21 

If Applicant is not owner, please indicate your interest in this property: 

Has property involved ever been subject to a previous application? 

If so, please give Application Number and Date: 

PLEASE FILL IN BELOW, OR ATTACH HERETO, A SKETCH OF THIS PROPERTY. 

List all property measurements and dimensions of any buildings already on the property. 

Put distances between present buildings or proposed buildings and property lines. 

NAMES OF ADJOINING PROPERTY OWNERS: 

Owner(s) on the North: 

Owner(s) on the South: 

Owner(s) to the East: 

Owner(s) to the West: 

Homeowners Association, name and address, if applicable: 

BY SIGNING THIS APPLICATION, I GRANT MEMBERS AND ALTERNATE OF THE BOARD OF 
ZONING APPEALS THE RIGHT TO ENTER ONTO THE PROPERTY FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
VIEWING THE SITE OF THE APPLICATION OR APPEAL.  

Signature of Owner/Applicant/Agent or Attorney Date 

Please file this form at 400 High Street, Chestertown, MD 21620 accompanied by $350.00 filing fee made payable 
to the County Commissioners of Kent County.  The filing fee for appeals of a Zoning Administrator’s decision is 
$250.00.  If you have any questions, please contact the Clerk at 410-778-7467. 

NOTICE:  Neither the Board of Appeals nor the Planning Department is required to make out this Application.  
If the Planning Department assists you, it cannot be held responsible for its contents. 

Applicants arriving more than 10 minutes after the scheduled hearing will not be heard and will be re-scheduled 
at the applicant’s expense. 

25809a Still Pond, LLC has entered into an 

land-lease agreement with the landowners for a 1 MW AC solar energy array. 

2/17/2021

N/A

N/A

Thomas Simmons, Jr.
26004 Still Pond Neck Road, Still Pond MD, 21667

Nancy Miller
26050 Bessicks Corner Road, Still Pond, MD 21667

Robert & Jean Payne

25809 Still Pond Neck Road, Still Pond, MD 21667

Cannery Road Farm, LLC
5376 Easter Neck Road, Rock Hall, MD 21661

N/A

26001

06/29/2022



 

0 

 
  

 
 

 

 

 

26001 Still Pond Neck Road-Solar 
Project Number: 2022004.00 
Date: April 27, 2022 

PROJECT 
NARRATIVE 

312 West Main Street 
Suite 300 
Salisbury, Maryland 21801 
410-546-9100 
 

Becker Morgan Group, Inc. 



  

www.beckermorgan.com 

1 

1.0 GENERAL SITE INFORMATION 
 
PROJECT NAME:  Still Pond Neck Road - Solar  
 
PROJECT LOCATION: 
Address: Still Pond Neck Road   
City, State, Zip: Still Pond, Maryland 21667 
County: Kent 
Nearest Intersection: Still Pond Neck Road and Still Pond Road 
Primary Street: Still Pond Neck Road  
Secondary Street: Still Pond Road  
 
PARCEL NUMBER(s): 98 
 
DEED(S):  424/ 342 
 
PLAT(S) None Available  
 
JURISDICTION: Kent County 
 
DATE PREPARED: March 31, 2022 
 
PREPARED BY: Becker Morgan Group, Inc.  
Address: 312 West Main Street, Suite 300 
City, State, Zip: Salisbury, Maryland 21801 
Contact Person: Edward (Ted) Hastings 
Phone: 410-546-9100 
Email: thastings@beckermorgan.com 
 
LANDOWNER: Raymond & Joyce Stoltzfus 
Address: 267 Riverview Road 
City, State, Zip: Peach Bottom, Pennsylvania 17563-9717  
Contact Person: Raymond Stoltzfus 
email: sell3130@gmail.com 
 
DEVELOPER: 25809A Still Pond Neck, LLC 
Address: 6865 Deerpath Road, Suite 330  
City, State, Zip: Elkridge, Maryland 21075 
Contact Person: Cory McCandless 
Phone: 410-779-9377 ext. 608 
 
PROPOSED BUILDING AREA: N/A  
 
LOT SIZE: 85.00 acres  
 
TYPE OF PROJECT: Solar 
 
 
 
 
  



  

www.beckermorgan.com 

2 

2.0 EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS: 
 
 Total Site   85.00 acres±  

 Wooded    19.35 acres±     

 Agricultural Use   65.65 acres±      

 Impervious    1,035 sq.ft.±   

 Hydraulic Soils Rating  B & C Soils (proposed array entirely in C Soils)  

 FEMA    24019C0215E 

 Flood Zone Determination Zone X – Areas outside the 0.2% annual chance flood   

 Existing Zoning  AZD – Agricultural Zoning District 

 Adjacent Zoning 

 North   AZD – Agricultural Zoning District  

 South   AZD – Agricultural Zoning District  

 East   AZD – Agricultural Zoning District  

 West   AZD – Agricultural Zoning District  

 Environmental Concerns: None Known 

 Road Frontage(s)  Still Pond Neck Road and Still Pond Road  

 Site Access   Still Pond Neck Road    

 State Wetlands One small area onsite not within the project area. 

 Source: MD Merlin Online  

 Streams Yes. Not within the project area. 

 Stream Buffer Yes. 100’ buffer not within the project area. 

 Water N/A  

 Sewer N/A 

 Natural Gas N/A 

 Electric Delmarva Power 

 Communications N/A 

 

SYNOPISIS 

The existing site is predominantly an active farm field with 19.35-acre wooded area located on the 

southernly portion of the parcel along a well-defined gulley. A blue line stream, as shown on MD Merlin, 

is located on the west side of the site approximately 970 feet from Still Pond Neck Road. A 100-foot 

buffer is shown as stream protection. An approximate 495-foot compacted dirt access road is located 

off Still Pond Neck Road, that leads to a 1,035 sq.ft. concrete pad and a few scattered trees. What 



  

www.beckermorgan.com 

3 

appears to be an abandoned irrigation well is located on the east side of the existing compacted dirt 

road, approximately 525 feet from Still Pond Neck Road. 
 

3.0  PROPOSED SITE CONDITIONS: 
 

The site is to be the location for a 1 MW Solar Array. The array footprint will be a maximum of five acres 

in size inclusive of the fencing encompassing the entire array. The site is in conformance with the 

following requirements as stated in SECTION 11. COUNTYWIDE STANDARDS FOR UTILITY-SCALE SOLAR 

ENERGY SYSTEMS: 

 200 feet from any lot line 

 200 feet from any road and/or right-of way 

 200 feet from any road / right-of-way within ½ mile of a town or village boundary that is the gateway 

into a town or village 

 200 feet from any residential use or zoning district 

 The solar array shall be enclosed by a fence or other appropriate barrier at the interior edge of the 

required landscape buffer, or immediately adjacent to the solar array. The fence or barrier shall: 

o Secure the facility at all times to prevent unauthorized persons or vehicles from gaining access. 

o All access gates will provide a sign that identifies the responsible parties or owners with current 

contact information. 

 Landscaping will be provided as follows: 

o Still Pond Neck Road has been established as gateway to Still Pond, Maryland, per the TAC 

meeting held on March 9, 2022, therefore a 60-foot-wide landscaped buffer will be provided on 

all sides of the array.  

o We are respectfully requesting a waiver for the 3-foot-tall berm to protect and maintain the 

existing drainage patterns of the site. The conditions for elimination of the berm as stated in 

SECTION 11. COUNTYWIDE STANDARDS FOR UTILITY-SCALE SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS will be met 

and shown in a landscaping plan, as designed by a licensed Landscape Architect. 

 The Forest Conservation requirements will be met by on-site conservation. A Forest Stand 

Delineation has been submitted to Kent County for review. 

 Stormwater management will be met by utilizing non-structural practices and by following MDE 

Stormwater Design Guidance for Solar Panel Installations. A Concept Stormwater Report has been 

submitted to Kent County for review. 

 The limits of disturbance for the site does not contain any wetlands, wetland buffers, streams, and 

stream buffers. 



  

www.beckermorgan.com 

4 

 Installation and maintenance will follow the Solar Standards, as stated in Section 11. 

 Noise levels produced will be below the 45 dBAs threshold, as measured at the property line. 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH KENT COUNTY ARTICLE VII, SECTION 7.57.25 

 A single axis tracking system is being proposed for this site. The panels will remain perpendicular to 

the sun, therefore eliminating glare to any surrounding properties and roadways. 

 Screening is being provided on all sides of the array in accordance with Section 11. View of the array 

will be completely obscured by both landscaping and fencing. 

 The array will not exceed 38 feet in height. 

 The array is situated so that the rest of the land can continue to be utilized for agricultural use. 

 The installation for the system will take place entirely on the parcel it is to be located with only one 

access off of Still Pond Neck Road. 

 The area within the fencing is no larger than the 5-acre. 

 Other than wire size, there shall be no alteration of utility infrastructure to accommodate the system. 

 No trees are to be removed as part of the project. 

 The site is located outside the Critical Areas.  

 

COMPLIANCE WITH KENT COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

The project has taken into consideration Maryland’s Twelve Planning Visions, as stated in the Kent 

County Comprehensive Plan and are as follows: 

 Quality of Life and Sustainability: The use of solar energy generating facilities help protect the 

environment by creating emission free energy source that does not impact the environment. 

 Public Participation: SGC Power sent a letter to the adjoining property owners explaining the project 

and that DP&L customers would be eligible to sign up for the Community Solar benefits with a 

potential savings up to 10% on their electric bill. 

 Growth Areas: Not applicable to this project. 

 Community Deign: Not applicable to this project. 

 Infrastructure: This additional electric infrastructure will allow residents to subscribe to the solar 

program to decrease their current electric bill. 

 Transportation: Not applicable to this project. 

 Housing: Not applicable to this project. 

 Economic Development: Not applicable to this project. 



  

www.beckermorgan.com 

5 

 Environmental Protection: Though this project will utilize existing farmland, once the life cycle of the 

solar array is completed, the site will be decommissioned and returned to the existing conditions. 

The site could be returned to agricultural use after the removal of the system. 

 Resource Conservation: A portion of the site will be put into a forest conservation area as a result of 

this project. 

 Stewardship: The Community Solar provides the community with an opportunity to reduce their 

electric bill while protecting the natural resources since the site can be returned to agricultural use 

once the site has been decommissioned.   

 Implementation: This site is in line with the State of Maryland goal of 50% of the State's energy 

coming from renewable sources by the year 2030. 

 

SCHEDULE (PRELIMINARY) 

Approval from all Agencies  February 2023 

Obtain Permits    March 2023 – June 2023 

Notice to Proceed   September 2023 

Start Construction   December 2023 

End Construction   May 2024 

 

Note: These dates are estimated and may vary dependent on availability of materials and contractors. 



200' B.R.L.

200' B
.R

.L.

200' B
.R

.L.

BLUE LINE STREAM
(MD MERLIN ONLINE)

100' CREEK BUFFER

SITE INFORMATION
1. SITE NAME: MDL118 - STILL POND NECK ROAD SOLAR
2. SITE ADDRESS: 26001 STILL POND NECK ROAD

(SOUTHWEST CORNER OF STILL POND NECK RD. AND STILL POND RD.)
WORTON, MD 21667

3. SITE OWNER: RAYMOND & JOYCE STOLTZFUS
267 RIVERVIEW ROAD
PEACH BOTTOM, PA 17563-9717

4. DEVELOPER: 25809 STILL POND NECK, LLC
C/O CORY MCCANDLESS
6865 DEERPATH ROAD, SUITE 330
ELKRIDGE, MD 21075
410-779-9377

5. ENGINEER: BECKER MORGAN GROUP, INC.
C/O TED HASTINGS
312 WEST MAIN STREET, SUITE 300
SALISBURY, MD 21801
410-546-9100

6. GEOGRAPHIC COORDINATES:
LATITUDE: 39°20'31.36"N
LONGITUDE: 76° 4'3.59"W

7. TAX MAP: 12
8. PARCEL: 98
9. DEED BOOK/PAGE: 424/ 342
10.PARCEL AREA: 85 ACRES ±
11.LEASE AREA: 8.05 ACRES ±
12. AREA OF USE: 5.00 ACRES
13.LIMIT OF DISTURBANCE: 9.10 ACRES ±
14.JURISDICTION: KENT COUNTY
15.ZONE:  AGRICULTURAL ZONING DISTRICT (AZD)
16.MINIMUM YARD AND SETBACK REQUIREMENTS FOR UTILITY SCALE SOLAR IS AS FOLLOWS:

FRONT: 200 FEET
REAR: 200 FEET
SIDE: 200 FEET

17.FLOOD ZONE DETERMINATION:
(BASED ON FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAPS PROVIDED BY FEMA)
FIRM MAP: 24029C0155D
EFFECTIVE DATE: MARCH 16, 2015
FIRM ZONE: "X" AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOODPLAIN

18.WATER AND SEWER NOT PROPOSED FOR THE SITE. C-001

1" = 200'

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x3624
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6

North Carolina

309 South Governors Avenue
Dover, DE 19904

302.734.7950

312 West Main Street, Suite 300
Salisbury, MD  21801

410.546.9100

Maryland

www.beckermorgan.com

Delaware

A
E
R
N
C
G
H
I
I
N
T
E
E
E
C
R
T
I
U
N G
RE

910.341.7600
Wilmington, NC  28403

3333 Jaeckle Drive, Suite 120

The Tower at STAR Campus
100 Discovery Boulevard, Suite 102

Newark, DE 19713
302.369.3700

.PDF

E.H.H. E.H.H.

.. .
.

C:\Temp AutoCAD\AcPublish_14200\202200400-Site-C3D21.dwg, Aug 21, 2022 - 12:14pm

 2022-08-21

DRAWN BY:

DATE:
PROJECT  NO.:

COPYRIGHT  2022

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUE  BLOCK

PROJECT  TITLE

SHEET  TITLE

SCALE:

SHEET

PROJ. MGR.:

C-001LAYER STATE:

26001 STILL POND NECK ROAD
STILL POND
KENT COUNTY,  MD 21667

MDL-118 STILL
POND NECK
ROAD - SOLAR

04/27/2022
2022004.00

ELECTION DISTRICT 3

0

SCALE:  1" = 30'

15 30 60

Do Not Explode - Select Scale

COVER SHEET

9ICINIT<  MAP SCALE : 1" =  2000'

N

SITE

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 48
N/F

ROBERT & JEAN PAYNE
DEED BOOK 445 PAGE 80

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 50
N/F

NANCY MILLER
DEED BOOK 937 PAGE 387

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 107
N/F

JAMES GREENWOOD II
DEED BOOK 693 PAGE 43

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 131
N/F

 JOAQUIM & ARLENE SILVA
DEED BOOK 763 PAGE 58

STILLPOND NECK ROAD

SHEET  INDEX
C-001 COVER SHEET
C-101 EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN
C-201 SITE PLAN

UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

CONCRETE SIDEWALK, SLAB / PAVING

IMPERVIOUS SURFACED ROAD, DRIVE

INDIVIDUAL TREE OR BUSH

STRUCTURE (CONCRETE, WOOD,

UNDERGROUND GAS MAIN

UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

PAVEMENT TO BE REMOVED

DRAINAGE DITCH OR SWALE

EMBANKMENT SIDESLOPES (DOWN)

ELEVATION SPOT SHOT

PROPERTY OR RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

LIGHT POLE

CONSTRUCTION NOTE

CENTERLINE

BENCH MARK

  METAL, ETC.)

CONTOUR 

OR LOT

WIRE FENCE

N/A

49

EVERGREEN DECIDUOUS

N/A

N/A

N/A

ITEM
SANITARY GRAVITY SEWER LINE,

STORM DRAIN LINE (CMP OR RCP)

STORM DRAIN MANHOLE (S.D.M.H.)

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE (S.M.H.)

SANITARY SEWER FORCE MAIN, SIZE

SIZE & FLOW DIRECTION

WATER VALVE (W.V.)  OR METER (W.M.)

CATCH BASIN

(TELEPHONE OR ELECTRIC OR BOTH)
UTILITY POLE W/ OVERHEAD SERVICE

SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT

WATER MAIN & SIZE

FIRE HYDRANT

& FLOW DIRECTION

PROPOSED
LEGEND

EXISTING

EX. 10" F.M.

EX. 10"S

EX. 10" W

F.H.

U.E.

U.T.

EX. 2" G

X X X

AGRICULTURAL  FENCE

STOCKADE  FENCE

43.55

10" S

12" F.M.

12" W

F.H.

U.E.

U.T.

2" G

X X X

55

25.15
B.C.25.00
T.C.25.50

W.M. W.V. W.M. W.V.

����1 STILL POND NECK
ROAD SOLAR PRO-ECT

KENT CO8NT<�  MAR<LAND
T+IRD ELECTION DISTRICT

S
T

ILL P
O

N
D

 R
O

A
D

�M
D

 S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
8

T
E

 ����PROPOSED
SOLAR FACILITY

TAX MAP 4  PARCEL 14
N/F

THOMAS SIMMONS, JR.
DEED BOOK 1139 PAGE 171

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 1
N/F

CANNERY ROAD FARM, LLC
DEED BOOK 1096 PAGE 216

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAD 83 (2011)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAVD 88



SOIL TYPE LISTING
BS BIBB SILT LOAM B/D

BUA BUTLERTOWN-MATTAPEX SILT LOAMS, 0 TO 2 PERCENT SLOPES C

BUB2 BUTLERTOWN-MATTAPEX SILT LOAMS, 2 TO 5 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED C

BUC2 BUTLERTOWN-MATTAPEX SILT LOAMS, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED C

CEC2 COLTS NECK LOAM, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED B

CNE COLTS NECK AND SASSAFRAS SOILS, 15 TO 40 PERCENT SLOPES B

IK IUKA SILT LOAM, RARELY FLOODED C

MNC2 MATAPEAKE SILT LOAM, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED B

MTCA MATTAPEX SILT LOAM, 0 TO 2 PERCENT SLOPES, MID-ATLANTIC COASTAL PLAIN C

SGC2 SASSAFRAS GRAVELLY LOAM, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED B

SGC3 SASSAFRAS GRAVELLY LOAM, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, SEVERELY ERODED B

FIR

FIP

FIPC

FSTONE

FIP

200' B.R.L.

200' B
.R

.L.

79
80

81

79

77

7879

78

7977

76

80

79

78

77

76

75

74

73

72

71

7070

6969

79

80

78

77

76

75

74

73

72

73

757778

76

79

77

77

S 83° 40' 35" W
310.00'

S 78° 45' 50" W

428.23'

N
 3° 30' 47" W

2011.83 '

79

78
77

78

77

76

75

74

73

72

71

70

69

68

67

77

77

BuA

BuC2
BuB2

BuC2

CeC2

MtcA

SgC3

Bs
CnE

SgC2
BuA

MnC2

CnE

CnE

BuA

BuB2

Ik

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 48
N/F

ROBERT & JEAN PAYNE
DEED BOOK 445 PAGE 80

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 50
N/F

NANCY MILLER
DEED BOOK 937 PAGE 387

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 107
N/F

JAMES GREENWOOD II
DEED BOOK 693 PAGE 43

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 131
N/F

 JOAQUIM & ARLENE SILVA
DEED BOOK 763 PAGE 58

EXISTING 1,034 SF
CONCRETE PAD
TO BE REMOVED

STILL POND NECK ROAD

S
T

ILL P
O

N
D

 R
O

A
D

(M
D

 S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 292)

S 82° 14' 26" W
270.18'

S 8° 06' 15" E

727.00'

S 71° 36' 25" W

1153.08'

S 83° 40' 35" W
143.76'

EXISTING
TREELINE

EXISTING
TREELINE

67
69

70

72

73

74

71

75
76

77

78

79

72

74

75

76

54

49

46

44

42

40

57

60

69

73

75

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

76

77

71

75

78

79

78

77

76

75

73

72 74

75 76

77

78

79 80

81

80

81

82

81

82

83

84

80

79

78

79

80

81

82

81

80

79

78

100.00'

EXISTING BLUE LINE STREAM
(MD MERLIN ONLINE)

100 FT STREAM BUFFER

200' B
.R

.L.

EXISTING COMPACTED
DIRT ROAD

EXISTING
AGRICULTURAL
DRAINAGE SWALE

EXISTING DITCH

EXISTING
AGRICULTURAL

DRAINAGE SWALE

S 01° 58' 25" E
200.00'

DEFUNCT IRRIGATION WELL TO BE
INSPECTED BY A WELL DRILLER

LICENSED BY THE MARYLAND STATE
BOARD OF WELL DRILLERS AND

ABANDONED PER MDE GUIDELINES.

80

C-101

1" = 100'

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x3624
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6

North Carolina

309 South Governors Avenue
Dover, DE 19904

302.734.7950

312 West Main Street, Suite 300
Salisbury, MD  21801

410.546.9100

Maryland

www.beckermorgan.com

Delaware

A
E
R
N
C
G
H
I
I
N
T
E
E
E
C
R
T
I
U
N G
RE

910.341.7600
Wilmington, NC  28403

3333 Jaeckle Drive, Suite 120

The Tower at STAR Campus
100 Discovery Boulevard, Suite 102

Newark, DE 19713
302.369.3700

.PDF

E.H.H. E.H.H.

.. .
.

C:\Temp AutoCAD\AcPublish_14200\202200400-Site-C3D21.dwg, Aug 21, 2022 - 12:14pm

 2022-08-21

DRAWN BY:

DATE:
PROJECT  NO.:

COPYRIGHT  2022

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUE  BLOCK

PROJECT  TITLE

SHEET  TITLE

SCALE:

SHEET

PROJ. MGR.:

C-101LAYER STATE:

26001 STILL POND NECK ROAD
STILL POND
KENT COUNTY,  MD 21667

MDL���� STILL
POND NECK
ROAD � SOLAR

04/27/2022
2022004.00

ELECTION DISTRICT 3

0

SCALE:  1" = 100'

50 100 200

Do Not Explode - Select Scale

EXISTING
CONDITIONS PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAD 83 (2011)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAVD 88



SOIL TYPE LISTING
BS BIBB SILT LOAM B/D

BUA BUTLERTOWN-MATTAPEX SILT LOAMS, 0 TO 2 PERCENT SLOPES C

BUB2 BUTLERTOWN-MATTAPEX SILT LOAMS, 2 TO 5 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED C

BUC2 BUTLERTOWN-MATTAPEX SILT LOAMS, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED C

CEC2 COLTS NECK LOAM, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED B

CNE COLTS NECK AND SASSAFRAS SOILS, 15 TO 40 PERCENT SLOPES B

IK IUKA SILT LOAM, RARELY FLOODED C

MNC2 MATAPEAKE SILT LOAM, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED B

MTCA MATTAPEX SILT LOAM, 0 TO 2 PERCENT SLOPES, MID-ATLANTIC COASTAL PLAIN C

SGC2 SASSAFRAS GRAVELLY LOAM, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, MODERATELY ERODED B

SGC3 SASSAFRAS GRAVELLY LOAM, 5 TO 10 PERCENT SLOPES, SEVERELY ERODED B

FIR

FIP

FIPC

FSTONE

FIP

200' B.R.L.

200' B
.R

.L.

79
80

81

79

77

7879

78

7977

76

80

79

78

77

76

75

74

73

72

71

7070

6969

79

80

78

77

76

75

74

73

72

73

757778

76

79

77

77

S 83° 40' 35" W
310.00'

S 78° 45' 50" W

428.23'

N
 3° 30' 47" W

2011.83 '

79

78
77

78

77

76

75

74

73

72

71

70

69

68

67

77

77

BuA

BuC2
BuB2

BuC2

CeC2

MtcA

SgC3

Bs
CnE

SgC2
BuA

MnC2

CnE

CnE

BuA

BuB2

Ik

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 48
N/F

ROBERT & JEAN PAYNE
DEED BOOK 445 PAGE 80

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 50
N/F

NANCY MILLER
DEED BOOK 937 PAGE 387

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 107
N/F

JAMES GREENWOOD II
DEED BOOK 693 PAGE 43

TAX MAP 12  PARCEL 131
N/F

 JOAQUIM & ARLENE SILVA
DEED BOOK 763 PAGE 58

STILL POND NECK ROAD

S
T

ILL P
O

N
D

 R
O

A
D

(M
D

 S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 292)

S 82° 14' 26" W
270.18'

S 8° 06' 15" E

727.00'

S 71° 36' 25" W

1153.08'

S 83° 40' 35" W
143.76'

EXISTING
TREELINE

EXISTING
TREELINE

67
69

70

72

73

74

71

75
76

77

78

79

72

74

75

76

54

49

46

44

42

40

57

60

69

73

75

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

76

77

71

75

78

79

78

77

76

75

73

72 74

75 76

77

78

79 80

81

80

81

82

81

82

83

84

80

79

78

79

80

81

82

81

80

79

78

100.00'

EXISTING BLUE LINE STREAM
(MD MERLIN ONLINE)

100 FT STREAM BUFFER

200' B
.R

.L.

GROUND SLOPE: 0%-5%
INTER-ROW SPACING = 10.1 FT

10 FT WIDE GRAVEL
ACCESS ROAD
TOTAL AREA: 4,853 SF

POI. MV INTERCONNECTION
LAT: N39° 20' 36.38"
LONG: W76° 03' 59.35"
DISTANCE: 430 FT

15FT X 25FT SOLAR
EQUIPMENT PAD

REMAINING PORTION OF
COMPACTED DIRT ROAD

60' WIDE PERIMETER
LANDSCAPE BUFFER

DEFUNCT IRRIGATION WELL TO BE
INSPECTED BY A WELL DRILLER
LICENSED BY THE MARYLAND STATE
BOARD OF WELL DRILLERS AND
ABANDONED PER MDE GUIDELINES.

SECURITY FENCE
AREA: 5.00 ACRES
PERIMETER: 1,936 FT

EXISTING AGRICULTURAL
DRAINAGE SWALE TO REMAIN

60' WIDE PERIMETER
LANDSCAPE BUFFER

60.00'

60
.0

0'

60.00'

20'

20
'

22'

21
'

10.00'

60
.0

0'

NOISE GENERATED BY THE
FACILITY SHALL BE LESS

THAN 45 dBAs MEASURED
AT THE PROPERTY LINE,

S 01° 58' 25" E
200.00'

EXISTING CULVERT
CROSSING TO BE
UTILIZED

289.89'

465.52'

PV MODULES

SECURITY FENCE
AREA: 5.00 ACRES
PERIMETER: 1,936 FT

611.87'

35
5.

96
'

80

C-201

1" = 100'

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x36
24x36

24x3624
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6
24

x3
6

24
x3

6

North Carolina

309 South Governors Avenue
Dover, DE 19904

302.734.7950

312 West Main Street, Suite 300
Salisbury, MD  21801

410.546.9100

Maryland

www.beckermorgan.com

Delaware

A
E
R
N
C
G
H
I
I
N
T
E
E
E
C
R
T
I
U
N G
RE

910.341.7600
Wilmington, NC  28403

3333 Jaeckle Drive, Suite 120

The Tower at STAR Campus
100 Discovery Boulevard, Suite 102

Newark, DE 19713
302.369.3700

.PDF

E.H.H. E.H.H.

.. .
.

C:\Temp AutoCAD\AcPublish_14200\202200400-Site-C3D21.dwg, Aug 21, 2022 - 12:14pm

 2022-08-21

DRAWN BY:

DATE:
PROJECT  NO.:

COPYRIGHT  2022

MARK DATE DESCRIPTION

ISSUE  BLOCK

PROJECT  TITLE

SHEET  TITLE

SCALE:

SHEET

PROJ. MGR.:

C-201LAYER STATE:

26001 STILL POND NECK ROAD
STILL POND
KENT COUNTY,  MD 21667

MDL���� STILL
POND NECK
ROAD � SOLAR

04/27/2022
2022004.00

ELECTION DISTRICT 3

0

SCALE:  1" = 100'

50 100 200

Do Not Explode - Select Scale

PROPOSED SITE
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAD 83 (2011)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAVD 88


	5_August_21_2023
	KC_BOA_Mins_July_17_2023_draft
	MINUTES
	Meeting: Kent County Board of Zoning Appeals


	_1_Extension Request - 25809a Still Pond Neck LLC - Special Exception - Staff Report
	_2_BOA Extension of Special Exception Application 2023
	_2a_Revised Special Exception Extension Request Letter
	_2b_Update_202200400-Site-C3D21
	202200400-Site-C3D21-C-001
	Sheets and Views
	202200400-Site-C3D21-C-001


	202200400-Site-C3D21-C-101
	Sheets and Views
	202200400-Site-C3D21-C-101


	202200400-Site-C3D21-C-201
	Sheets and Views
	202200400-Site-C3D21-C-201


	202200400-Site-C3D21-C-401
	Sheets and Views
	202200400-Site-C3D21-C-401


	202200400-Site-C3D21-C-501
	Sheets and Views
	202200400-Site-C3D21-C-501


	202200400-Site-C3D21-C-502
	Sheets and Views
	202200400-Site-C3D21-C-502


	202200400-Site-C3D21-C-901
	Sheets and Views
	202200400-Site-C3D21-C-901



	_3_Signed Decision Letter_Still Pond Neck
	1 25809a Still Pond Neck LLC - PC letter to BOA
	2 25809a Still Pond Neck LLC - Special Exception - Staff Report
	3 Board of Appeals Application
	4 Narrative_rev2
	5 Site-C3D21-C-001
	6 Site-C3D21-C-101
	7 Site-C3D21-C-201



